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1           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Pursuant to the Direction of

2 the Illinois Commerce Commission, I now call Docket

3 No. 130349, Gilbert Candelario versus Commonwealth

4 Edison Company.  This matter concerns a complaint as to

5 billing class charges in Chicago, Illinois.

6                Will the parties please enter their

7 appearances for the record?  Include your name, your

8 address and your telephone number.

9           MR. CANDELARIO:  Gilbert Candelario, 3832

10 West 86th Street, Chicago, Illinois 60652.

11           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Would you include your

12 telephone number?

13           MR. CANDELARIO:  (773)934-0636.

14           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Commonwealth Edison Company,

15 Mark L. Goldstein.  3019 Province Circle, Mundelein,

16 Illinois 60060.  My telephone number is (847)949-1340.

17 With me this morning is Ms. Erin Buechler with ComEd as

18 well as two witnesses, Phyllis McElroy and Alexis

19 Bullard.

20           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Thank you.  As you all know,

21 our hearing today is an evidentiary hearing.  And for

22 the benefit of Mr. Candelario, I'm going to explain
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1 what's going to happen today.  Today is the day that

2 you will be able to -- you will be allowed to present

3 your case to the Commission by presenting testimony and

4 documents that relate directly to your case and support

5 your case.  You will present that to me.

6                You'll be given an opportunity to

7 testify in your own behalf as well as offering

8 documents and photographs that you've brought in with

9 you today as evidence, and you will testify first.

10 While you are presenting your case in chief,

11 Mr. Goldstein will have an opportunity to ask you

12 questions, and that will be cross examination.  His

13 side will then be given the opportunity to offer

14 documents into the record and present witnesses in

15 support of their position.

16                You will also have an opportunity to

17 cross examine any witnesses presented by ComEd.  When

18 cross examining the company's witnesses, your questions

19 should be directed to the witnesses and not the

20 attorney for ComEd.  And it's not a time to offer

21 further testimony.  You can only question the witnesses

22 as I mentioned before.
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1                After all testimony and witnesses are

2 presented, the case will be marked heard and taken.

3 I'll consider all the evidence that's been submitted

4 into the record.  And once the transcript is made

5 available, I'll prepare a proposed order, which

6 contains my proposed decision on your complaint.

7                The proposed order will be mailed to

8 both parties.  You will have an opportunity to file a

9 written response to the proposed order if you disagree

10 with it in the form of a brief on exception, which

11 should contain any recommended changes or objections

12 you have to the proposed order.  ComEd will also have

13 the opportunity to file a brief on exceptions if it

14 disagrees with the proposed order.

15                In addition, you both will have an

16 opportunity to file written replies if you disagree

17 with the other person's reply brief on exception.

18                I will consider all responses, and as

19 necessary, make changes to the proposed order.  My

20 decision is a recommendation, which is submitted to the

21 Commission, which makes the final decision.  And that

22 final decision will still be mailed to all the parties.
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1 Okay.  Any question before we proceed?

2           MR. CANDELARIO:  No.

3           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  At this time, I'm going

4 to swear you in.  If you can raise your right hand.  Do

5 you swear that the testimony that you're going to give

6 today is the truth and nothing but the truth?

7           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yes.

8                     (Witness sworn.)

9           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  I'm going to have you

10 do like a brief opening statement, just real briefly,

11 tell me what your complaint is about.  You'll have an

12 opportunity to give me more details, but just something

13 really brief and then ComEd will give me their opening

14 statement.

15                    OPENING STATEMENT

16 BY MR. CANDELARIO:

17           I'm here today to go against these charges

18 against me.  I don't know why I have these charges

19 against me.  I've never had anybody do this to me

20 before.  The only way I'm going to get a fair shake is

21 for you to make a decision, because they are saying

22 this -- and I know what I did.  You know what I mean --
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1           JUDGE TEAGUE:  So tell me, generally, what is

2 your complaint?  It just seems from reading --

3           MR. CANDELARIO:  The complaint?

4           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Yeah -- that they are charging

5 you for --

6           MR. CANDELARIO:  They are charging me for

7 tampering with the meter.

8           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  And you're saying you

9 didn't.

10           MR. CANDELARIO:  I never touched it.

11           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  Okay.  ComEd, would you

12 like to do your opening statement?

13           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, Judge.

14                    OPENING STATEMENT

15 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

16           As Mr. Candelario has stated, there is a

17 tampering charge in the complaint.  We do not have to

18 prove that Mr. Candelario tampered with the meter, only

19 that the meter was tampered with and that

20 Mr. Candelario received a benefit from that tampering.

21                Since of the only thing in dispute in

22 this matter is the tampering charge itself, which
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1 Mr. Candelario contests, there is no rebilling issue

2 that would be before the Commission.  So to sum up

3 again, this is a tampering case.  We do not have to

4 prove that he tampered with the meter, only that the

5 meter was tampered with and that he received and

6 benefit under the Commission rules.

7           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Thank you.  Okay.

8 Mr. Candelario, now, I'm going give you an opportunity

9 to explain your case in more detail.  You have -- I

10 think you have pictures.  If you want to use those to

11 kind of walk through your story, however you'd like to

12 do it.

13           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yes.  And I have some

14 paperwork from work.  It just shows that -- all the

15 paperwork says they came on the 11th, and they didn't.

16 They came on the 12th.  So all the documents are even

17 wrong that they are sending me.

18           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Relating to when this

19 occurred, like when they said this occurred?

20           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yes.  And everything they

21 said -- they came out on the 11th; it wasn't on the

22 11th.  It was the 12th.  I got a copy from my secretary
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1 at work.  She keeps track of the days we take off and

2 what we use, got it all written down here.

3                I mean, if I'm going to be accused of

4 doing this, I would think that everything should be

5 right.

6           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  So if I understand

7 better, you're saying that --

8           MR. CANDELARIO:  And I got the phone bill.

9 So she called me that morning and let me know that she

10 was going to be there in five, 10 minutes.  If I was

11 doing anything, if I knew how to do that, wouldn't I

12 take them off before anyone went back there?  Why would

13 I wait until the last minute?  And why would I -- I

14 mean, how could she walk up on me if I got a privacy

15 fence around my property.  I don't understand that.

16           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  We're going to -- I

17 want you to explain it to me from the beginning, what

18 happened.  But first, I want to know, in terms of these

19 photos, is that all you want to put in the record -- or

20 it sounds like you have something else.

21           THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  I got paperwork that I

22 have from work.  I have my telephone bill.  And, I
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1 mean, just the dates.  Everything is wrong on it.

2           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  Do you have copies of

3 these things?

4           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yes.  Yes.

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Let's go off the record for

6 one quick second.

7                     (WHEREUPON, off the record.)

8           JUDGE TEAGUE:  We can go back on the record.

9                Let the record reflect that we took a

10 short break to make photocopies of some exhibits that

11 the Complainant would like to offer into evidence.  At

12 this time, I'm going to mark them.

13                And I'm marking them 2 and 3.

14                     (Complainant Exhibit No. 2 and

15                      Exhibit No. 3, was marked for

16                      identification.)

17           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  So let's continue now

18 that we have marked the other documents that you'd like

19 to offer.

20                As I was saying before, this is your

21 case in chief where you get to tell me -- explain what

22 happened.  So if you could start from the beginning and
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1 just explain what happened, you know, the cause of your

2 complaint and what you would like the Commission to do

3 about it.

4                    DIRECT TESTIMONY

5 BY MR. CANDELARIO:

6           Okay.  June 2012, about the middle of June, I

7 noticed my meter stopped spinning.  I give ComEd a

8 call; they said that they would get somebody out there.

9           JUDGE TEAGUE:  What do you mean by, "it

10 stopped spinning"?  What does that mean?

11           MR. CANDELARIO:  How it spins, when you --

12 you know, every time the air conditioner comes on, it

13 spins faster inside.

14           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Oh, okay.

15           MR. CANDELARIO:  It just wasn't spinning at

16 all.  I had electric going in the house.  I was paying

17 on my bill.  The lady told me to just keep paying on

18 it.  So I wait about a month, I didn't hear nothing

19 back from them.  They told me it would be in December.

20 So they said just keep paying on the bill.  When they

21 finally came out to change the meter, it was 288 still

22 credited on my bill.  And then she went ahead.  She put
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1 a lock on there.  I called up.  I didn't want the lock

2 on there, just the other little -- like a dog tag type

3 thing.  That's all I wanted on there.  Like I said, I

4 got a privacy fence all the way around my house.  So --

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Why didn't you want the lock?

6           MR. CANDELARIO:  I don't know, I just didn't

7 want it.  I mean, I -- I don't mess with electric

8 anyway, I mean, but -- so I called up.  She -- the

9 ComEd worker told me to call the office.  I called that

10 up.  They told me well, if you didn't want it on there,

11 why didn't you tell here so she wouldn't put it on

12 there.  So I waited for her to call me back.  And she

13 told me that it's their property and that they'll, you

14 know, lock it up any way they wanted to.  I said that's

15 fine, I just wanted to know why.  I don't know anybody

16 that's got a lock on their stuff.

17                So they went ahead sent me a bill for

18 $488.  I paid that.  And what I want is the $488

19 credited toward my bill.  I had no -- I had no reason

20 to tamper with the meter, like I said.  The electric

21 was running.  I was ahead of my bill.  There was no

22 reason for me to do anything like that.
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1           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  You were ahead of your

2 bill, meaning you had paid more than --

3           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yeah.  I got credited.  I

4 was still 288 ahead.

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Because you had paid extra --

6           MR. CANDELARIO:  Right.  I was paying like

7 one -- you know -- I'm not sure about the number, but

8 it was two something.

9           JUDGE TEAGUE:  And on your complaint, I just

10 want to clarify.  You say you are contesting the 488,

11 but then in another place you said "I want the

12 Commission to apply the tampering fee of 588 as a

13 credit."  Did you mean 488?  Just so I make sure.

14           MR. CANDELARIO:  No, 488.  Just what I paid,

15 because they took the 288.  And what was left, then I

16 paid that out of my pocket.  So they took other money

17 that wasn't there.

18           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Oh, I see what you are saying.

19 They put your credit --

20           MR. CANDELARIO:  They took that for the

21 tampering fee, and then I had to pay the rest out of

22 pocket -- well, actually, the whole thing.
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1           JUDGE TEAGUE:  And then you paid additional

2 money --

3           MR. CANDELARIO:  Right, just to make it up to

4 the --

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  So you would like the

6 Commission to re -- have them credit your account with

7 that amount?

8           MR. CANDELARIO:  Right.

9           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  And did they ever --

10 okay.  I don't have any more questions.  Did you have

11 anything else you wanted to say?

12           MR. CANDELARIO:  No.

13           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  Then I -- at this time,

14 ComEd can proceed with any cross examination they may

15 have.

16           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  What about the exhibits,

17 Judge?

18           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Oh, I was going to do that

19 afterwards, but we can do it now.

20           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Oh.

21           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Let's do it now.  That makes

22 sense.  Let's go ahead and do it now.  Okay.  It's my
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1 understanding, Mr. Candelario, that you would like to

2 offer Exhibits 1 through 3 into the record with Exhibit

3 1 being eight photographs with post-its explaining what

4 the photographs are, and Exhibit 2 being your

5 attendance history at work.

6           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yes.

7           JUDGE TEAGUE:  And Exhibit 3 being your

8 telephone records for January 7 through --

9           MR. CANDELARIO:  Actually, just for December

10 of '12.

11           JUDGE TEAGUE:  December of '12.  Okay.

12                Would you like to explain these

13 photographs a little bit before we --

14           MR. CANDELARIO:  The reason I took the

15 photographs, because they got it here "upon arrival of

16 technician, she witnessed me removing jumpers or

17 whatever -- jumpers from the box.

18           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Uh-huh.

19           MR. CANDELARIO:  There's no -- I don't

20 understand how she walked up on me if everything is in

21 the yard locked up.  I mean, I got -- I called up

22 numerous times trying to talk to them about it, so that
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1 I mean wouldn't hear it.  So I got --

2           JUDGE TEAGUE:  So this first photograph is a

3 photograph standing by your neighbor's house?

4           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yeah.

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  And the second one is

6 your neighbor's house next door?

7           MR. CANDELARIO:  Next door.

8           JUDGE TEAGUE:  And --

9           MR. CANDELARIO:  I mean, from the lock --

10 just -- I mean, that shows that she -- I mean, I don't

11 understand how she walked up on me and putting these

12 allegations on me like this.  I mean --

13           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  And -- and then your

14 backyard.  Okay.  That's where the meter is.  You're

15 showing us the meter.

16           MR. CANDELARIO:  Right.  And the lock that's

17 on there.  I mean, that just didn't -- that looks

18 tacky.

19           JUDGE TEAGUE:  That's the lock -- and the

20 next photograph, it shows the lock that was placed on

21 it.  And the next one also shows additional locks.  And

22 the next is your deck where you can see the meter.  And
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1 the last one is your dogs, showing why you always have

2 your gate locked.  Is that --

3           MR. CANDELARIO:  Right.  They have never been

4 out since this happened.

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  And when did you take these

6 pictures?

7           MR. CANDELARIO:  The last time I was here.  I

8 took them on the morning of 6/10/2013 at --

9           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.

10           MR. CANDELARIO:  -- like -- at about noon.  I

11 think I picked it up -- it says here 1:17.

12           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  All right.  Does ComEd

13 have any objection to the admission of these exhibits?

14           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have no objection to the

15 photos, Judge.

16                I think that there is not a proper

17 foundation laid for the timekeeper sheet or whatever

18 this is, which is Complainant's Exhibit 2.  I cannot

19 tell offhand from the exhibit even who the employer is.

20 And I don't know -- there's a bunch of -- there's

21 writing on the exhibit.  And I don't know who wrote --

22 made those notations and so on and so forth.  So I
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1 don't think there's a proper foundation laid for that

2 exhibit.

3           MR. CANDELARIO:  The secretary's number and

4 everything is on there.  She said if we had any

5 problems, we can call her.  It's on the bottom right.

6           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Where it says something

7 Nagel --

8           MR. CANDELARIO:  Nagel -- C.L. Doucelt.  And

9 that's the company's writing on there.

10           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Whose writing is at the

11 bottom?

12           MR. CANDELARIO:  That's the lady that

13 takes -- she does the vacations and everything,

14 secretary.  So she's got to keep up with all of that.

15           JUDGE TEAGUE:  So Ms. Nagel is the person who

16 wrote these things at the bottom?

17           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yes.

18           JUDGE TEAGUE:  And what's the employer's

19 name?  Like, there's no --

20           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yeah.  She's got it just

21 written down --

22           JUDGE TEAGUE:  No.  I mean, who do you work
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1 for?  Like --

2           MR. CANDELARIO:  C.L. Doucelt.

3           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Oh, it's on here.  So this

4 right here.  That's your employer's name.

5 (Indicating.)

6           MR. CANDELARIO:  Right.

7           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Does that change anything for

8 you?

9           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  No.  I think that there's not

10 a proper foundation, Judge.  And I guess the better way

11 of doing it would be to have the timekeeper here.  And

12 there is a lack of foundation, and it should not be

13 entered.

14           MR. CANDELARIO:  But that's proof.  I mean,

15 if I'm getting accused of all this, I think everything

16 should be in a row.  We don't even have the right

17 dates.  I mean, I called up ComEd.  They told me the

18 technician came out and he saw you -- the same thing

19 they said, taking off the jumpers.  I told them it was

20 a female.  They told me it didn't make a difference.

21                If I'm being accused of something that

22 they don't even have their facts right, I don't see how
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1 they can accuse me of this.

2           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I mean, there's no basis.  We

3 cannot tell from this exhibit, you know, what the basis

4 of these -- whatever this record is.

5           MR. CANDELARIO:  Well, December 12, 2012.

6 It's got it there.  December, and it goes straight up.

7 And that's the 12th.  That was my last personal day.  I

8 knew ComEd was coming out, and I knew I needed to be

9 covered.  So I --

10           JUDGE TEAGUE:  And it has the name of

11 the company.  It's just that it would have been nicer

12 if it was actually typed on here.  Do you have an

13 objection to his phone records?

14           MR. CANDELARIO:  The date is on the phone

15 records too.  I don't understand.

16           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Well, I guess this is a

17 record of -- from T-Mobile.  I guess the only thing I

18 would say, in addition, is that his account number is

19 on the record and perhaps it should either be deleted

20 out or --

21           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Yeah, it needs to be redacted.

22           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  This should be provided as an
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1 exhibit.

2           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Yeah.  Okay.

3           MR. CANDELARIO:  All I brought that in for

4 was just to show the date on there.

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Yeah.  We just want to make

6 sure your information is protected.  And your account

7 number is listed on there.

8           MR. CANDELARIO:  Right.  I didn't see that.

9           JUDGE TEAGUE:  So what I can do is admit

10 this -- you know, once we finish -- once I make my

11 ruling, if I admit it, we can admit it as a

12 confidential document so other people don't have access

13 to your information.

14           MR. CANDELARIO:  Well, we can just cross it

15 out or something, take that off.

16           JUDGE TEAGUE:  We can.  But I'm just saying

17 we'll have to do that.  But it will be confidential --

18                I mean, you know, no one really needs to

19 see your phone calls anyway.  So it's just for

20 protection.

21           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I guess I have one further

22 objection, Judge.  The phone number shown on this
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1 exhibit is (773)733-6385.

2           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yeah, that's my mom's.

3 She's -- I'm on her account.

4           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  And the phone that it shows

5 on the complaint is (773)934-0606.  And you know, I

6 believe that's the number I called to speak to him.

7           MR. CANDELARIO:  Right.  I'm on --

8           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  So I don't know that this is

9 actually his phone.  I object to the exhibit.

10           JUDGE TEAGUE:  What were you going to say?

11           MR. CANDELARIO:  I'm on the same account with

12 my mom, so we both -- the bill comes in, but it's in

13 her name.

14           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  If he had a phone record,

15 Judge, of the 934 number, then I guess I would not

16 object.  I do object to this.  He's got a landline.  I

17 know I have spoken to him on the landline.

18           MR. CANDELARIO:  I have no landline.

19           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Well, you have some phone

20 that I spoke to you from before prior.

21           MR. CANDELARIO:  I have my cell phone.

22           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Okay.  So he has his own cell
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1 phone.  He can put in his own cell phone record.  I

2 object to this exhibit.  And there's no evidentiary

3 hearing.  And it should not be admitted.

4           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Yeah, this number appears to

5 be another number.

6           MR. CANDELARIO:  That's my mom's number.

7           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Right.

8           MR. CANDELARIO:  We're both on the same

9 account.  The account comes in her name.  And I pay my

10 bill every month.

11           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Well, wouldn't the -- the

12 number would be here.  You know what I mean?

13           MR. CANDELARIO:  What?  This one here?

14 (Indicating.)

15           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Yeah, whatever number you use.

16 Like, if you are on someone else's account, it would

17 have all the different numbers.

18           MR. CANDELARIO:  No, this is from my -- this

19 is the same account as my mom's.  I mean, you can call

20 her and you can ask her, do whatever we have to do.

21           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Well --

22           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, this is not his
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1 record.  If you look at the first entry on Complainant

2 Exhibit No. 3 for 12/11/12 --

3           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Which page?  I'm sorry.

4           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Page 1.

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Uh-huh.

6           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  The first number is -- at

7 12:34 p.m. from (773)934-0606.  That's --

8           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Wait, wait, wait.  I'm not on

9 that page.  I'm sorry.

10           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  The first page -- first

11 entry.

12           JUDGE TEAGUE:  One second.  Mine might be out

13 of order, because mine says Page 3 of twenty --

14           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  This is Page 4 of 29, Page

15 80 --

16           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Page 4.  These are all out of

17 whack here.  So this (773)934- -- that's the number you

18 reached him at?

19           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's his number.

20           MR. CANDELARIO:  That's --

21           JUDGE TEAGUE:  That's the number that's on

22 the complaint?



31

1           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  What he is providing,

2 Judge --

3           JUDGE TEAGUE:  That's the number that's on

4 the complaint.

5           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  What he is providing and it's

6 his mother's account number.  I object to it, that it's

7 improper, and you cannot let that in.  If he brought in

8 T-Mobile, whatever account he has for his own cell

9 number, that's a different story, but not this.

10           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Yeah, yours -- if you had --

11 if it said your phone number.  But this one has your

12 mother's phone number, so I can't let this in.

13           MR. CANDELARIO:  Well, the only thing I

14 brought it for was just the date.  That's all -- I just

15 brought it in to show the date when they called.

16           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  And I still have an objection

17 to ComEd -- to Complainant Exhibit 2, rather.

18           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  The objection to

19 Exhibit 3, the phone records, I'm going to sustain

20 because these -- this phone record does appear to be

21 someone else's.

22                Okay.  Here you go.  I don't know if
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1 this is yours too or mine.  I think it's mine.  Okay.

2 And then this work attendance history.

3           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We don't know whose

4 handwriting that is, Judge.  We don't know anything

5 about the exhibit other than certain things are marked

6 on the exhibit and handwritten.

7           MR. CANDELARIO:  That's why she put the

8 number on there, in case I had any problems, you can

9 call her.

10           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Let me take a quick break.

11 Give me two seconds and I'll be right back, okay?

12                     (Off the record.)

13           JUDGE TEAGUE:  On the record now.

14           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I believe that Mr. Candelario

15 testified that he took a personal day on the 12th.

16 This exhibit shows -- I think, and I'm not certain

17 about that -- that under the Column 6 is the date.  I

18 would also point out if you look closely at that

19 notation for 12/12, you will see that something was

20 written over it.

21           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Uh-huh.

22           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  And that leads me to believe
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1 that this exhibit really has no evidentiary value.  We

2 don't know who wrote it.  Mr. Candelario could have

3 written it; his mother could have written it.  Anybody

4 could have written it.

5                The person who did put in these

6 notations is not here to cross examine.  And I think

7 it's quite unfair, prejudicial for you to look at the

8 exhibits.

9           JUDGE TEAGUE:  I actually am going to sustain

10 your objection.  I took a closer look at it.  And I

11 agree that it's just not possible to know the

12 authenticity of this document, you know what I mean, I

13 mean, we don't have the foundation.  We don't know who

14 produced it, any of those things, who wrote these

15 comments.  The name of the company isn't even typed,

16 you know, on the form.

17                So it would not be appropriate to admit

18 this into evidence.  So I'm going to sustain that

19 objection.  Now, if you want to state for the record

20 that you -- I think your reasoning for wanting to put

21 this in the record is that you were at work this day.

22           MR. CANDELARIO:  No.  I was off that day.
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1           JUDGE TEAGUE:  What was the point of why you

2 wanted to --

3           MR. CANDELARIO:  I'm just trying to establish

4 the date.

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  What about the date?  I'm

6 sorry.

7           MR. CANDELARIO:  They got -- on all their

8 documents, their dates aren't right.  I feel if I'm

9 being accused of this, then everything should be in --

10           JUDGE TEAGUE:  No, I just want you to tell

11 me -- I understand what you're saying.  I just want you

12 to tell me why this was significant to you.  What about

13 the date?  You can testify about that.

14           MR. CANDELARIO:  Well, it shows the only sick

15 day, personal time, whatever I took, it shows the date

16 on that one.

17           JUDGE TEAGUE:  I know.  But are you trying to

18 say -- was your argument that they allege that they saw

19 you doing this, and you want to say you were at work?

20 Like, what was your line of --

21           MR. CANDELARIO:  No, what they got on there

22 was everything was on the 11th.  I took the 12th off.
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1 I know I took the 12th off, because that's the last

2 time I had before the beginning of the new year.  So --

3 I mean, I don't understand.  I mean, if they go -- they

4 can write down what they want.  They can say what they

5 want.  The dates are wrong.

6           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Wait.  Can I stop you for a

7 second?  I'm just trying to make sure the record

8 reflects your story; that, you know, you're able to

9 articulate exactly what is going on, so it's fair to

10 you.  So I'm trying to figure out -- the 12th is

11 important.  Why?

12           MR. CANDELARIO:  That's the day that they

13 came out --

14           JUDGE TEAGUE:  That they said they saw you,

15 right?

16           MR. CANDELARIO:  Right.

17           JUDGE TEAGUE:  And you are saying you

18 weren't -- you were at work?

19           MR. CANDELARIO:  No.  I was off that day.

20 They are saying they saw me on the 11th.  I took the

21 12th off.  They got the dates --

22           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  They said they saw you
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1 on the 11th, but you were at work on the -- you're

2 testifying that you're at work on the 11th?

3           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yes.

4           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  That's all I'm -- I was

5 just saying since I'm not going to be able to admit

6 this in the record, I was just giving you an

7 opportunity to express why -- you know, what the

8 significance of this was.

9           MR. CANDELARIO:  I thought it would be enough

10 just to put a -- get a copy of it.

11           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Yeah.  No.  It would have been

12 better maybe if she could have testified or something

13 like that.  But since you're here, you're testifying

14 that you were at work that day.

15                Okay.  So with respect to these

16 exhibits, I'm going to admit Exhibit 1, which is the

17 photographs.  And then as, we -- I discussed earlier,

18 I'm going to sustain the objection to Exhibits 2 and 3.

19 So those will not be admitted into the record.

20                     (WHEREUPON, Complainant Exhibit

21                      No. 1 was admitted into evidence.)

22
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1           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  All right.  Just making

2 a note for myself.  I think we were going to proceed

3 with cross examination at this point.

4           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, Judge.  I have just a

5 few questions.

6           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.

7                    CROSS EXAMINATION

8 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

9      Q    Mr. Candelario, am I correct that your sole

10 objection and the reason for you filing the complaint

11 at the Commission is that you object to the tampering

12 fee that was assessed by ComEd to your electric

13 account?

14      A    Yeah.  That's not right, and what they are

15 saying is not right.

16      Q    Okay.  I understand what your position is.

17 As I look at the photographs, Mr. Candelario, it would

18 be quite difficult for ComEd to obtain access to the

19 meter in the back of your house; is that correct?

20      A    Yes.

21      Q    And not only is there a privacy fence, but as

22 you show on your last picture, you also have dogs in
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1 the back of your yard?

2      A    Right.

3      Q    Now, do you recognize Ms. McElroy to my

4 right?

5      A    Yes.

6      Q    She was the person who came out from ComEd on

7 whatever date it was, December 11th or 12th?

8      A    Twelfth.

9      Q    And she was the one who put the lock on the

10 meter that you show on two of your pictures as part of

11 your Exhibit 1; is that right?

12      A    Right.

13           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have no other questions,

14 Judge.

15           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  At this time, we are

16 going to rest your case in chief.  And we are going

17 proceed to ComEd's case in chief.  And as you are

18 listening to ComEd's witnesses testify you might want

19 to, you know, write down any questions or anything like

20 that you have so you don't forget just so you don't

21 forget, just letting you know to be helpful.

22                So now, you can proceed.
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1           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  All right.  I call my first

2 witness, Ms. Phyllis McElroy.

3                    PHYLLIS McELROY,

4 called as a witness herein, after having been first

5 duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

6                   DIRECT EXAMINATION

7 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

8      Q    Ms. McElroy, state --

9           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Let me -- you can do her name.

10           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Swear the witness.

11           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  And do you have another

12 witness here too so we can get both at the same time?

13           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, Ms. Bullard is here

14 also.

15           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  Do you both swear that

16 the testimony you're about to give today is the

17 truth and nothing but the truth?

18           MS. McELROY:  I do.

19           MS. BULLARD:  Yes.

20           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  Thank you.

21                You may proceed.

22
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1 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

2      Q    Ms. McElroy, please state your name for the

3 record and spell your last name?

4      A    Phyllis McElroy, M-c-E-l-r-o-y.

5      Q    And you are employed by ComEd; is that

6 correct?

7      A    Yes, I am.

8      Q    What is your position with ComEd?

9      A    Energy Technician.

10      Q    And how long have you held that position at

11 ComEd?

12      A    Upgraded for two years, and three and a half

13 years Filler Meter Services Energy Technician.

14      Q    How long have you been employed by ComEd?

15      A    Fifteen years.

16      Q    And you have held other positions with ComEd

17 during those 15 years?

18      A    Yes, I have.

19      Q    What other positions have you held?

20      A    I was a meter reader for ten years, an

21 upgrade technician installing AMI meters in Maywood for

22 a year and a half and Filler Meter Services, Meter
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1 Department, three and a half years.

2      Q    And could you describe your duties and

3 responsibility as an Energy Tech for ComEd?

4      A    I work in the Meter Department where we

5 examine the meters.  We go to customer's houses,

6 examine the meters for tampering or exchange the

7 meters, install, disconnect, insert a meter to be for

8 commercial or residential services.

9      Q    And you were out at Mr. Candelario's property

10 at 3832 West 86th Street in Chicago, were you not?

11      A    Yes, I was.

12      Q    And you were out there, as you state, on what

13 date?

14      A    On December 11th.

15      Q    Of what year?

16      A    2012.

17      Q    And as part of your jock as an Energy Tech,

18 you have the access to the company's books and records

19 that are held in the ordinary course of ComEd's

20 business?

21      A    Yes, I do.

22      Q    And you heard Mr. Candelario's testimony that
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1 he did not tamper with the meter and there was no way

2 that -- I guess, that you could have witnessed

3 tampering due to the security fence around his yard.

4 Do you recall that?

5      A    Yes.

6      Q    You were out at the property.  Did you see

7 any dogs?

8      A    I didn't see any dogs.

9      Q    Was that security fence as shown on the

10 photographs, the fence that was around Mr. Candelario's

11 yard?

12      A    Yes, it is.

13      Q    You went out to the property, did you not?

14      A    Yes.

15      Q    And you were out there for what reason?

16      A    I was out there for a stuck meter order.

17      Q    And you went out there, and what did you do

18 when you got out to the property?

19      A    I had an order to investigate a stuck meter.

20 And that's where we are not getting any reads off the

21 meter.  It's possible the meter is not working

22 correctly.  So I had to call the customer for access.
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1 I called Mr. Candelario to get access.

2           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Can I interrupt you for a

3 second?  You had the order to investigate the meter

4 with that.  Do you know, was that generated by the

5 Complainant's phone call or something else?

6           THE WITNESS:  I don't know how it came about.

7           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  I'm sorry.

8 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

9      Q    Okay.  So you went out to the property.  How

10 did you gain access to the meter?

11      A    Mr. Candelario let me in the gate.

12      Q    And what did you observe when Mr. Candelario

13 opened the gate and you accessed the property?

14      A    He opened the gate.  And he had tools in his

15 hand, screw drivers, some pliers.  And when I got into

16 the backyard, the fitting, the cover was off.

17      Q    The fitting cover of the meter was off?

18      A    Of the meter.

19      Q    And when you saw that the meter fitting cover

20 was off, what did you do?

21      A    I proceeded to do the order.  I looked at the

22 meter and pulled the meter out.  The meter was damaged.
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1 And so I had to replace the meter because it was

2 damaging -- you know, we didn't want it to cause any

3 electrical fire, anything like that.

4           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Can you describe how it was

5 damaged, like, what was wrong with it?

6           THE WITNESS:  Well, usually if the meter is

7 intact -- you know, there's a pin that goes in the

8 meter.  The pin was out, and the meter -- the back of

9 it was bent, so the meter was damaged.

10 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

11      Q    Okay.  And --

12           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Can I interrupt and ask the

13 next question?

14           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Sure.

15           JUDGE TEAGUE:  I'm sorry.

16                In your experience, is that something

17 that can happen by wear and tear, or is that only

18 something you see with tampering?

19           THE WITNESS:  It cannot happen with wear and

20 tear.  The pins don't fall out.

21           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.

22
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1 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

2      Q    Now, you reported this problem with the

3 meter, did you not, in some form, correct?

4      A    Yes, I did.

5      Q    And let me show you what's been marked as

6 ComEd Exhibit No. 1, which says "Individual or

7 Completion Debtor Report."  Is this the report that you

8 filled out with respect to your investigation of the

9 stuck meter at Mr. Candelario's property?

10      A    Yes.

11      Q    And in the section that is shown "Completion

12 Comments" is that what you found when you were out at

13 the property with respect to the meter?

14      A    Yes, it is.

15           JUDGE TEAGUE:  What are the jumpers?  You

16 said a customer -- and you said he was removing the

17 jumpers.

18           THE WITNESS:  Jumpers are wires that they can

19 bypass the meter.  You can take the meter out, bypass

20 the meter by jumping from line to load, that way the

21 meter cannot record.  So if you take the meter out, and

22 you put jumpers in there, then they won't get, you
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1 know, charged for a certain amount of electricity until

2 they put the meter back in.

3           JUDGE TEAGUE:  So there were jumpers in there

4 and you saw the Complainant taking those jumpers out;

5 is that your testimony?

6           THE WITNESS:  I seen them in his hand.

7           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Looking at your hands.  Okay.

8           MR. CANDELARIO:  She's lying.

9           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Mr. -- what we'll do is we

10 have to have decorum.  So I know you're upset.  After

11 Mr. Goldstein finishes with this witness, you can ask

12 questions about her testimony.

13 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

14      Q    Just to make it clear, Ms. McElroy, with

15 respect to what you saw with -- how the meter was

16 damaged, am I correct that that could not have occurred

17 as a result of wear and tear on that particular meter?

18      A    No, no.  The meter is secured and fitted with

19 a cover over it.  It's no way to bend up, and no way

20 the pin can come out.

21      Q    And you locked off -- you put in the new

22 meter, did you not?
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1      A    Yes, I put a new meter in, a five-dial meter.

2      Q    Okay.  And did you have a conversation with

3 Mr. Candelario with respect to your visit at his

4 property?

5      A    Yes, I did.  He asked me why was I exchanging

6 the meter.  I told him because the meter was damaged,

7 so I put a new meter in there.  And he said he didn't

8 want that meter.  He wanted an automatic meter.  I

9 explained to him that we don't have those yet.  It's

10 probably a year or two down the line.  He wanted a

11 meter that we could put in so we don't have to come in

12 his yard.  And we don't have those.

13                So I had to put the one that we have to

14 read in.  So he didn't want that one, so I had to put

15 this one in there.  Also the cover would not fit on the

16 fitting, so that's why I put the lock on there.

17           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Oh, okay.

18           THE WITNESS:  Because we have to make it safe

19 for the customers.

20

21 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

22      Q    And with respect to the ComEd Exhibit 1, the
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1 Completion Data Report, does this report accurately

2 describe what you observed at Mr. Candelario's property

3 on December 11, 2012?

4      A    Yes.  Yes, it does.

5           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have nothing else, Judge.

6 I would move into evidence ComEd Exhibit No. 1.

7           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Mr. Candelario, do you have

8 any objection to the admission of this exhibit?

9           MR. CANDELARIO:  (Inaudible Response.)

10           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Did you say no?  I'm sorry.

11 The court reporter has to record your response.

12           MR. CANDELARIO:  No.

13           JUDGE TEAGUE:  No.  Then ComEd Exhibit 1 is

14 admitted into evidence.

15                     (WHEREUPON, ComEd Exhibit No. 1,

16                      was admitted into evidence.)

17           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Mr. Candelario, do you have

18 any -- oh, I'm sorry.  Did I -- yeah, I admitted these

19 into the record.  Do you have any questions for the

20 witness?

21           MR. CANDELARIO:  No.

22           JUDGE TEAGUE:  No.  Okay.
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1                Okay.  Mr. Goldstein, would you like to

2 proceed with your next witness?

3           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.  I would like to call my

4 next witness, Alexis Bullard.

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Alexis Bullard.

6           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Do you want to exchange --

7 you are excused.

8           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Yeah.  Sorry.  You are

9 excused.

10                     ALEXIS BULLARD,

11 called as a witness herein, after having been first

12 duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

13                   DIRECT EXAMINATION

14 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

15      Q    Ms. Bullard, please state your name for the

16 record and spell your last name?

17      A    Alexis Bullard, B-u-l-l-a-r-d.

18      Q    And what is your position with ComEd?

19      A    I'm a Business Analyst in the Customer

20 Relations Department.

21      Q    And how long have you held that title with

22 ComEd?
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1      A    Two years, six months.

2      Q    And how long have you been employed by ComEd.

3      A    Twenty-five years.

4      Q    And could you generally describe your duties

5 and responsibilities as Business Analyst.

6      A    I handle informal customer complaints, which

7 require me to analyze customer current information,

8 investigate customers' concerns regarding a variety of

9 issues from high billing, meter reading, tampering,

10 transfer charges, etcetera.  In my analysis, I

11 generally review billing records meter reading history

12 and adjustment to an account.

13      Q    And you are familiar with Mr. Candelario's

14 account, are you not?

15      A    Yes.

16      Q    And let me hand you what has been marked as

17 ComEd Exhibit No. 2, which is entitled "Select Meter

18 Reading History" for a meter that ends in the Number

19 540.  And that's for a Gilbert Candelario at 3832 West

20 86th Street, Chicago, Illinois.  Do you have that in

21 front of you?

22      A    Yes.
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1      Q    Is this a business record of ComEd kept in

2 the ordinary course of its business?

3      A    Yes.

4      Q    Can you explain what is shown on this

5 exhibit?

6      A    It's a meter reading history of

7 Mr. Candelario's account.  It details any actual

8 readings taken by the meter reader, estimated readings

9 if the reader is not able to get an actual reading and

10 working readings which are taken outside normal meter

11 reading dates.

12      Q    And does it show on the exhibit when

13 Mr. Candelario's meter was exchanged?

14      A    Yeah.

15      Q    And what was that date?

16      A    December 11, 2012.

17      Q    And prior to the meter being exchanged, are

18 there any unusual readings?

19      A    Yes.  There are several months of zero usage

20 between June and December 2012.  This is what I think

21 initiated the stuck order, which Phyllis mentioned in

22 her testimony, meaning the company is not able to
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1 record any usage from that meter.

2      Q    After the tampered meter was exchanged, is

3 the meter recording usage?

4      A    Yes, there was progressive readings each

5 month.

6      Q    All right.  Let me show you what has been

7 marked as ComEd Exhibit 3, which is ComEd's account

8 activity statement for Mr. Candelario at the 3832 West

9 86th Street address.  Is this also a business record,

10 ComEd, kept in the ordinary course of its business?

11      A    Yes.

12      Q    And you have access to that record, do you

13 not, as a Business Analyst?

14      A    Yes.

15      Q    Now, as the -- a result of your analysis and

16 what is shown on the account activity statement, was

17 Mr. Candelario charged a tampering fee?

18      A    Yes.

19      Q    And on what date and for how much?

20      A    On Page 2, on the far left is the date to go

21 to February 22, 2013.  It says, "Revenue Protection

22 Tampering Fee of 488.61 was charged to the account.
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1      Q    Now, this tampering fee is based on ComEd's

2 tariff; is it not?

3      A    Yes.

4      Q    What is the current balance on

5 Mr. Candelario's account?

6      A    $149.41 is due on August 15.

7      Q    Now, the four-hundred-eight-eight dollar and

8 61 cents charge, that has been credited to

9 Mr. Candelario's account, has it not?

10      A    Correct.

11      Q    And how does ComEd go about doing that?

12      A    If an -- if an account has an outstanding

13 balance, including a tampering charge, any payments

14 made to the account are going to go off the tempering

15 fee first -- they apply the tampering fee first instead

16 of the actual electric use bill.

17      Q    Now, Mr. Candelario discussed a two hundred

18 and twenty-two dollar and 90 cent credit on his

19 account.  Do you see that on Page 2 of the account

20 activity statement?

21      A    Yes.

22      Q    Could you explain what that is?
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1      A    That's an excess credit.  He had paid for

2 that.  On 10/29, he made a two-hundred-dollar payment.

3      Q    That's 10/29/2012?

4      A    Correct.

5                And at that time he had a

6 thirty-eight-dollar and 51 cent credit on the account,

7 which would have brought his excess credit to $238.51.

8 And the next bill cycle was issued on 11/19 for $15.61.

9 So the $15.61 gets debited from the 238.51 excess

10 credit leaving him still an excess credit of 222.90

11 going into the next billing cycle.

12           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have nothing else for the

13 witness, Judge.

14           JUDGE TEAGUE:  I have a quick question.  I

15 don't know if you know the answer.  But do you know if

16 ComEd charges its Revenue Protection Tampering Fee

17 pursuant to a tariff, ComEd tariff?

18           THE WITNESS:  Yes.

19           JUDGE TEAGUE:  You don't happen to know the

20 tariff number?

21           THE WITNESS:  I don't --

22           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, we can provide that if
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1 you wish.

2           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.

3           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We will do so.

4           JUDGE TEAGUE:  I will --

5           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Do you want that --

6           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Or if you just know the tariff

7 number, that will be fine.

8           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We will be happy -- it's --

9 oh, it is ComEd Tariff LCC No. 10, which is general

10 terms and conditions, the second revised sheet No. 187.

11           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Thank you.

12           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have nothing else for the

13 witness.  I would move into evidence ComEd Exhibits 2

14 and 3.

15           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Mr. Candelario, do you have

16 any objection to these exhibits?

17           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yeah.  I don't think -- if

18 you're just telling me that they couldn't read the

19 meter, so it's all zero, I was getting bills before I

20 called on the meter.  They were regular bills.  You

21 know, it shows here that they are zero.

22                But then you're reading them after the
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1 meter was put in -- I mean, if they can't gain access,

2 how are they reading it now if they couldn't read it

3 before assuming they couldn't get access to the meter.

4 I was told when I called ComEd --

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Is that a question?  Did you

6 want to ask this witness that question?

7           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yes.  I don't understand

8 this.

9           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Well, let's first focus on

10 the --

11           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's not an objection to

12 the exhibit, Judge.

13           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Yeah, I know.  Let's first

14 focus on the exhibit, then I'll give you an opportunity

15 to ask her questions.  Do you have -- these are

16 business records that ComEd keeps.  Do you have

17 objections?

18           MR. CANDELARIO:  No.

19           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  Then ComEd Exhibits 2

20 and 3 are admitted into evidence.

21                     (WHEREUPON, ComEd Exhibits No. 2

22                      and No. 3 were admitted into
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1                      evidence.)

2           JUDGE TEAGUE:  At this time, you can ask the

3 witness any questions you may have.

4                    CROSS EXAMINATION

5 BY MR. CANDELARIO:

6      Q    I don't understand how they can't read the

7 meter, when they can read the meter.  I called ComEd.

8 I was told that if they can't gain access to the yard,

9 they have binoculars or something like that, they can

10 go to the back and they can read the meters.

11      A    Some areas do use binoculars.  Some as

12 showing here.  If you look on meter reading history,

13 the second line where it says, "two," 6/21, 7/24, 8/22

14 09/20 and 10/19, all of those were actually readings

15 but the 09/20, which means they got actual readings,

16 they were all showing zero, the same reading.  So when

17 he keys in that reading, he's keying in the same exact

18 reading.  He doesn't know what your last reading is, so

19 he's billing you with zero usage.

20      Q    Well, when -- now, if they read the meter

21 when they -- wouldn't they try to get ahold of me

22 telling me that they can't get a reading off my meter
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1 and --

2      A    But they are getting a reading.  You're

3 thinking if it's estimated for access.  They are still

4 getting a regular reading.  It's coming up with zero --

5 being billed zero usage.  That's not saying they are

6 not getting the reading.  It's saying that they are

7 getting the reading, but it's showing you are not

8 getting billed for any usage.  You're getting just

9 billed the customer charge each month.

10      Q    Wouldn't they -- I mean, wouldn't they get

11 ahold of me, let me know that they can't get anything?

12      A    No.  That's when they issued the stuck meter

13 investigation order.

14      Q    I called in for that.  I called for that.

15 They didn't call me for that.

16      A    I didn't say they called you for that.  I'm

17 saying that's unable to issue through the system.

18 After X amount of actual readings from zero usage, it's

19 going to be put through the Meter Reading Department,

20 someone will go out and check the meter.  And that's

21 when Phyllis went out on a stuck meter investigation.

22                Now, after the new meter is put in on
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1 12/11, the new meter was put in where it says what

2 change meter in reading, under source, it says zero,

3 which is new meters are all set at all zeros.  And then

4 each read after that, it's showing meter read.  It's

5 showing actual usage.  It's not showing zero.  It's not

6 showing the actual --

7           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Did you understand?

8           MR. CANDELARIO:  I don't have anything.

9           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  So -- just so I'm

10 clear, you're saying that the zeros is not saying they

11 cannot read the meter, it's just saying what it is

12 reading at zero usage?

13           THE WITNESS:  Correct.

14           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Any other questions,

15 Mr. Candelario, for her?

16 BY MR. CANDELARIO:

17      Q    If it was saying zero usage, why --

18           MR. CANDELARIO:  I called them.  They said if

19 they can't read the meter, anything like that, they go

20 from the year before.  I was getting bills then.

21           JUDGE TEAGUE:  I know, but she was clarifying

22 that it's not that they cannot read your meter.  They
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1 are saying that they did read the meter, but it was

2 saying zero usage.  But I understand what you are

3 saying.

4           MR. CANDELARIO:  Yeah.

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Anymore questions for her?

6           MR. CANDELARIO:  No.

7           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  You are done.  Thank

8 you.

9           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have just one question on

10 redirect.

11           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Sure.

12                Actually, before you ask the question

13 for redirect, I have one quick question.  I don't want

14 to forget -- oh, for her -- I'm sorry.  Go, go.

15           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Either way, your Honor.

16           JUDGE TEAGUE:  No, you can go.  I'm sorry.

17                  REDIRECT EXAMINATION

18 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

19      Q    Looking back at the account activity

20 statement, isn't it a fact that each month

21 Mr. Candelario was receiving a bill for a number of

22 dollars?
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1      A    Yes.

2      Q    Okay.  And --

3           MR. CANDELARIO:  That was just for the

4 line --

5           JUDGE TEAGUE:  So what would that have -- if

6 the usage was zero, that would have been the

7 customer -- what would that --

8           THE WITNESS:  The customer charge.  He was

9 being billed 15.31, which is just the customer charge,

10 no usage.  So if you look under the charge amount

11 starting on -- if you look down to 8/22 electric

12 service -- I'm sorry -- 7/24 electric service, and you

13 go to the right, it says the bill cycle is from 6/21 to

14 7/24.  And then you see 15.31.

15                So he's being billed a customer charge

16 15.31 there, 15.31 the month after, 15.31, the month

17 after that.  So that's how -- it's just getting him --

18 the customer charge is what he's getting billed.  He's

19 not getting billed any usage.

20           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.

21           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have nothing else.

22           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Nothing else?  Okay.  I did
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1 have a quick question for Mr. Candelario that I meant

2 to ask you.  I just wanted to know how long you've

3 lived at that residence.  Has it been a while?

4           MR. CANDELARIO:  Nineteen years, somewhere

5 around there.

6           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Okay.  Well, at this point,

7 both parties have presented their cases, and what we

8 are going to do now is your closing statement.  So you

9 can just sort of sum up your case really briefly.

10           MR. CANDELARIO:  I just don't feel it's right

11 that I'm getting charged this money for tampering P-G

12 fee when I didn't do anything.  I don't think it's

13 right.  I think it's a big corporate company, that they

14 can do things like this and get away with it.  I don't

15 think that's right.

16           JUDGE TEAGUE:  ComEd.

17           MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, I believe clearly

18 ComEd established by a preponderance of the evidence

19 that Mr. Candelario's meter was tampered with.  And

20 with the zero readings each month, it's clear that

21 Mr. Candelario had to have been using some electricity

22 each one of those months.  So he did benefit from the
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1 fact that his meter was tampered with.

2                The only issue in this complaint is the

3 tampering charge.  I believe we have clearly

4 established the basis for the tampering charge, and

5 therefore, I believe that Mr. Candelario's complaint

6 should be denied by the Commission.

7           JUDGE TEAGUE:  Thank you.  At this point,

8 I'm -- this concludes the evidentiary hearing for

9 today.  And I'm going to close the record and mark it

10 heard and taken.  And as I mentioned before, once I get

11 the transcript, I'll prepare a proposed order, which

12 will be mailed to all the parties.  Okay?  Thank you

13 very much.

14                     (WHEREUPON, the proceeding

15                      adjourned at 12:30 p.m.)

16

17

18

19

20

21

22
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